

LCR Proposal Summary and Key Improvements

EPA's proposed Lead and Copper Rule (LCR) includes a suite of actions to reduce lead exposure in drinking water where it is needed the most. The proposed rule will identify the most at-risk communities and ensure systems have plans in place to rapidly respond by taking actions to reduce elevated levels of lead in drinking water.

The proposed LCR maintains the current Maximum Contaminant Level Goal (MCLG) of zero and the Action Level of 15 ppb. The proposed rule will require a more comprehensive response at the action level and introduces a trigger level of 10 ppb that requires more proactive planning in communities with lead service lines.

The agency's proposal therefore takes a proactive and holistic approach to improving the current rule from testing to treatment to telling the public about the levels and risks of lead in drinking water. This approach focuses on six key areas provided below.

1: IDENTIFYING AREAS MOST IMPACTED

To help identify areas with the greatest potential for lead contamination of drinking water, the EPA is proposing that all water systems prepare and update a lead service line (LSL) inventory. To reduce high levels of lead in certain locations, the EPA is proposing to require water systems to "find-and-fix" the causes of these elevated levels.

Key Improvements:

- The EPA will for the first time require a public lead service line inventory.
- Unlike now, systems will have to pay attention to individual locations with elevated levels of lead by identifying the cause and mitigating the problem.

Under the Current LCR:

- Systems are only required to conduct a materials inventory for the purposes of identifying enough sites for tap sampling. These inventories are not of the entire system, nor are they public.
- Systems must only take action if more than 10% of tap samples are greater than the action level (15 ppb). There are no requirements for systems to take follow-up samples at sites with individual tap samples greater than 15 ppb.



2: STRENGTHENING TREATMENT REQUIREMENTS

The EPA is proposing to revise requirements for corrosion control treatment (CCT) based on tap sampling results. The EPA's proposal also establishes a new trigger level of 10 ppb. At this trigger level, systems that currently treat for corrosion would be required to reoptimize their existing treatment. Systems that do not currently treat for corrosion would be required to conduct a corrosion control study so that the system is prepared to respond quickly when necessary.

Key Improvements:

 Based on sampling results, systems with elevated lead levels will reevaluate their existing corrosion control treatment or conduct a treatment study so that they are prepared to respond quickly when necessary.



Under the Current LCR:

- Requirements are based primarily on system size. Systems serving > 50,000 persons are required to have CCT while systems serving < 50,000 have CCT requirements after an action level exceedance and may discontinue these requirements if the action level no longer exceeded for two 6-month monitoring periods.
- Systems are not required to re-optimize their CCT, unless directed to do so by the state, and may only be required to conduct a CCT study when there is an action level exceedance.

3: REPLACING LEAD SERVICE LINES

The EPA is proposing to require water systems to replace the water system-owned portion of an LSL when a customer chooses to replace their customer-owned portion of the line. The EPA is also proposing to require water systems to conduct outreach and initiate lead service line replacement programs when lead levels are above the proposed trigger level of 10 ppb. The proposal requires systems that are above 10 ppb but at or below 15 ppb to work with their state to set an annual goal for replacement. Systems that are above 15 ppb will be required to replace a minimum of three percent of the number of LSLs annually. The proposal also prevents systems that exceed the trigger and action levels will have flexibility with respect to treatment and lead service line replacement actions.

Key Improvements:

- The trigger level is a new flexible provision designed to compel water systems to take proactive, tailored actions to plan upgrades to aging infrastructure and reduce levels of lead in drinking water.
- Systems above 10 parts per billion would be required to work with their state to set an annual goal for replacing lead service lines. Water systems above 15 parts per billion would be required to fully replace a minimum of three percent of the number of known or potential lead service lines annually.
- Importantly, the proposal prohibits "test-outs" to avoid replacing lead service lines an allowed practice under the current rule that has significantly slowed national progress in removing this significant source of lead from our homes.
- Partial lead service line replacements will no longer be allowed except in certain situations (e.g., emergency repair) because science has recently shown us that partial lead service line replacement may increase short-term lead exposure.
- Flexibility is important for small systems so that they can protect public health by taking the action that makes sense for their community.

Under the Current LCR:

- Water systems are not required to replace their portion of an LSL when the customer-owned portion of the line is being replaced.
- No LSLR plan is required. Systems are only required to implement an LSLR program when the lead action level of 15 ppb is exceeded.
- Systems can count partial LSLRs and LSLs that have been tested out (i.e., samples from the LSL do not exceed 15ppb) as replaced to meet the 7% mandatory annual replacement rate.

EPA's proposed Lead and Copper Rule has **sensible approaches to protect children from lead** in drinking water. By providing flexibility for small systems, the rule allows systems to protect public health by taking **common sense actions.**

4: INCREASING SAMPLING RELIABILITY

The EPA is proposing to improve tap sampling procedures. For example, requiring wide-mouth bottles for collection and prohibiting flushing and cleaning or removing faucet aerators before sampling. The EPA is also changing the criteria for selecting homes where samples are taken to require sampling in homes with lead service lines. And, systems with higher levels of lead will sample more frequently.

Key Improvements:

• Water systems will follow new, improved sampling procedures, will adjust sampling sites to better target locations with higher lead levels, and systems with higher levels will sample more frequently.

Under the Current LCR:

- Systems are not prohibited from instructing samplers to flush before sampling, remove and/or clean faucet aerators, and use narrow-necked collection bottles, all of which could mask elevated lead levels.
- Systems with LSLs are only required to collect 50% of tap samples from sites served by LSLs, which could obscure problems in the system.

5: IMPROVING RISK COMMUNICATION

The EPA is proposing to require systems to notify customers of an action level exceedance within 24 hours. The EPA is also proposing to require that systems make the LSL inventory publicly available and conduct regular outreach to homeowners with LSLs.

Key Improvements:

• Homeowners will learn about elevated levels of lead in their system sooner. They will also understand where lead services lines are in their community and how to protect their family from exposure to lead.

Under the Current LCR:

- Customers are notified of their tap sampling results, regardless of whether there is an action level exceedance, within 30 days of the system receiving the results.
- A materials evaluation is only required for sites used for tap monitoring and is not public. Water systems are not required to inform customers if they have a known or potential LSL.

6: PROTECTING CHILDREN IN SCHOOLS

Since children are most at risk, the EPA is proposing that community water systems (CWS) sample drinking water outlets at each school and each child care facility served by the system. The system would be required to provide the results and information about the actions the school or child care facility can take to reduce lead in drinking water.

Key Improvements:

• For the first time, systems will be required to test school and child care facilities.



Under the Current LCR:

Community water systems are not currently required to test schools and child care facilities. Only schools and child care facilities classified as Non-Transient Non-Community Water Systems must sample for lead and copper.

